

**ORDINANCE NO. 20-07**

**CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS  
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA**

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 54 AND 113  
OF THE FALCON HEIGHTS CITY CODE**

THE CITY COUNCIL OF FALCON HEIGHTS ORDAINS:

**SECTION 1** Chapter 54 – Vegetation is amended as follows. Additions are shown with an underline, and deletions are shown with a ~~striketrough~~.

***Section 54-38 – Regulations for private property***

- (b) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

*Edible landscaping* means the intentional planting, caring for, or otherwise cultivating plants that could produce food that is consumed by people. These plants include fruit and nut trees, berry bushes, vegetables, herbs, or edible flowers.

*Native plants* are those grasses (including prairie grasses), sedges (solid, triangular-stemmed plants resembling grasses), rushes, forbs (flowering broadleaf plants), vines, trees and shrubs that are plant species native to the state of Minnesota prior to European settlement.

*Noxious weeds* are annual, biennial, or perennial plants that the Commissioner of Agriculture designated to be injurious to public health, the environment, public roads, crops, livestock, or other property (Minnesota Noxious Weed Law, Minn. Stat. Sec. 18.75-18.91).

*Ornamental plants* means grasses, flowering annual, biennial, and perennial plants, shrubs, trees, and vines that may not be native to Minnesota, but are adapted. Ornamental grasses do not include turfgrasses.

*Turf grass* means commercially available cultured turf grass varieties, including bluegrass, fescue and ryegrass blends, commonly used in regularly cut lawn areas.

*Planned landscape area* means an area where ornamental plants, or native plants are planted pursuant to a plan.

*Rain garden* means a shallow excavated depression (typically no more than 18 inches deep) with loosened sub-soils in which ornamental or native plants that are adapted to moist conditions and have deep roots are planted for the purpose of infiltrating and filtering rain water and reducing storm water runoff. Temporary ponding of water in rain

gardens typically occurs for no more than 48 hours after rainfall assuming no subsequent rainfall.

Residential garden means an area of edible landscaping on a lot that is conducted by the property owners or residents of that lot.

*Restoration area* means an area where native plants are being, or have been, intentionally re-established

*Weeds* are (i) prohibited noxious weeds or (ii) any volunteer plant, except trees and other woody vegetation, which is not customarily or intentionally planted. For the purposes of this definition, weeds do not include dandelions or clover.

(c) Location of restoration areas, ~~and~~ planned landscape areas, and edible landscaping areas.

(1) Setback. A restoration area, ~~or a~~ planned landscape area, or residential garden must provide the following minimum setbacks:

- a. Front lot line, corner side lot line, or rear lot line abutting a street or alley: two feet, and two feet from publicly maintained pavement or sidewalk
- b. Interior side lot line or rear lot line not abutting a street or alley: two feet; provided, however, for the exception in the required side yard or rear yard setback, as described in section 54-38(c)(2).

(2) Mitigations for reductions in side or rear yard setback. A required interior side yard or rear yard (not abutting a street or alley) setback may be reduced to zero feet for a restoration area, planned landscape area, or residential garden if:

- a. A fence at least three feet in height is installed on the lot line adjoining the restoration area, ~~or~~ planned landscape area, or residential garden; or
- b. The restoration area, ~~or~~ planned landscape area, or residential garden abuts:
  1. A restoration area, planned landscape area, or residential garden on any adjoining lot;
  2. A public park or open space;
  3. A wetland, pond, lake or stream;
  4. Natural area; or
- c. The restoration area or planned landscape area is located on slopes equal to, or greater than, three feet horizontal to one foot vertical (3:1).

(d) Maintenance Standards. Every owner of property shall maintain the vegetation growing thereon according to the minimum standards set forth in this subsection:

- (1) The setback area required by section 54-38(c) shall be composed of a soil retention cover such as mulch, regularly mowed turf grasses or groundcovers maintained at six inches or less, native or ornamental plants maintained at ten inches or less, trees or shrubs, or as may be required by the city administrator to protect the soil and aesthetic values on the lot and adjacent property.
- (2) Non-woody vegetation in a planned landscape area shall be cut at least once annually between April 15 and July 15 to a height no greater than 10 inches.
- (3) It is unlawful to plant any tree or shrub within five feet of a property lot line abutting a right-of-way of a public street or alley.
- (4) Property owners shall prune trees and shrubs located on private property so they will not obstruct pedestrian sidewalk traffic, nor obstruct the view of any traffic sign, street, alley, or intersection. Overhanging portions of trees and shrubs must be pruned to maintain a minimum clearance of eight feet over all sidewalks, and 16 feet over all streets.
- (5) Properties shall be free of blight and blighting factors, as described in section 22-19.
- (6) Properties shall be free of public nuisances, as described in section 22-47.
- (7) The city may require the owner or occupant who has planted, or has allowed to be planted, native plants or other vegetation within a drainage or utility easement to remove the native plants or other vegetation from the drainage and utility easement at no expense to the city if the city determines the native plants or vegetation interferes with the utility easement. The city will not be responsible for damage to turfgrass and/or any landscaped areas resulting from public works improvements or snow removal activities within drainage and utility easements.
- (8) Retail sales of produce from edible landscaping activities shall not occur on the property.

**SECTION 2** Subsection 113-174(d) is amended as follows. Additions are shown with an underline, and deletions are shown with a ~~striketrough~~.

***Section 113-174 – One-family R-1 residential district***

(d) Permitted accessory uses. No accessory structures or use of land shall be permitted except for one or more of the following uses:

- (1) Home occupations meeting the definitions and requirements of section 113-391.
- (2) Private tennis courts, provided no portion of the paved or fenced area is within a required front yard or less than ten feet from a property line.
- (3) One private garage or carport and parking space as regulated in section 113-240.
- (4) Private automobile repair or reconditioning as regulated in section 113-250.

(5) ~~Gardening and other horticultural uses where no retail sale of products is conducted on the premises.~~ Planned landscape areas and edible landscape areas, including residential gardens, as defined and regulated in section 54-38.

(6) Keeping of domestic pets as required in the Code.

(7) Signs as provided in subsection (g) of this section.

(8) Decorative landscape features and fences as regulated herein.

(9) Accessory buildings other than detached private garages as regulated herein. The design and placement of the accessory buildings must be approved by the planner as being in harmony with the surrounding residential neighborhood.

(10) Buildings temporarily located for purposes of constructing on the premises for a period not to exceed the time necessary for such construction (approved by zoning administrator).

(11) One composting area, or one compost structure as defined in section 113-240(1), of plant material including leaves, grass clippings, plant trimmings, fruits, vegetables and peels, but excluding animal derived materials such as bones, meat scraps and dairy products, not to cover more than 25 square feet in area and five feet in height in the rear yard. A larger composting area requires a permitted accessory use permit. A compost area must be set back at least five feet from any property line. The compost shall be maintained according to accepted composting practices for the residential yard.

(12) Garage and residential boutique sales limited to four sales each calendar year per residential unit, not to exceed ten consecutive days or two consecutive weekends each.

(13) Keeping of chickens as regulated by the Code.

**SECTION 3** Subsection 113-177(e) is amended as follows. Additions are shown with an underline, and deletions are shown with a ~~strikethrough~~.

***Section 113-177 – B-1 neighborhood convenience district***

(e) Permitted accessory uses. The following uses shall be permitted accessory uses:

(1) Off-street parking and loading, signs, fences, and decorative landscape features as regulated herein.

(2) Temporary construction buildings (approved by zoning administrator).

(3) Accessory structures other than private garages as regulated herein. The design, placement, screening and size of the accessory buildings must be approved by the city council as being in harmony with the surrounding business district and neighborhood after review and recommendation by the planning commission.

(4) Essential service structures, provided no building shall be located within 30 feet of an abutting lot in an R district. The placement of the essential service structure must be approved by the city council as being in harmony with the surrounding business district and neighborhood after review and recommendation by the planning commission.

(5) Public telephone booths or drive-up service. The placement of the telephone booth or drive-up service must be approved by the city council as being in harmony with the surrounding business district and neighborhood after review and recommendation by the planning commission

(6) Planned landscape areas and edible landscape areas, including residential gardens, as defined and regulated in section 54-38.

~~(67)~~ Other as deemed to be normal, customary, and incidental by the zoning administrator.

**SECTION 4** Ordinance 20-04 is repealed in its entirety.

**SECTION 5** This ordinance shall be effective upon its passage and a summary published in the official newspaper.

**ADOPTED** this 9th day of December, 2020, by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota.

-----  
Moved by:

Approved by: \_\_\_\_\_  
Randall C. Gustafson  
Mayor

GUSTAFSON            \_\_\_ In Favor  
LEEHY  
MIAZGA                \_\_\_ Against  
WEHYEE  
ANDREWS

Attested by: \_\_\_\_\_  
Sack Thongvanh  
City Administrator